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Dear Secretary Barton:

Enclosed for filingon behalf of Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics Corporation (“Sharp”),
are the followingdocuments in support of Complainants’ request that the Commission
commence an investigation pursuant to the provisions of Section 337 of the TariffAct of 1930,
as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337.

Please note that Confidential Exhibits 15 and 38 to the Complaint contain Confidential Business
Informationand pursuant to the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, a request for
confidential treatment of the information in those exhibits accompanies this filing.Accordingly,
Complainant submits the following:

1. One original and eight (8) paper copies of Complainant's Non-Confidential Verified
Complaint and the Public Interest Statement (original unbound); one (1) CD of the Non
Confidential Exhibits, and one (1) CD of the Confidential Exhibits (Commission Rules
201.6(0), 210,4(1)(2) and 210.8(a)(l)(i) and 201 .8(b));

2. Eleven (11) additional copies of the Non-Confidential Verified Complaint, and the Public
Interest Statement, and eleven (11) CDs of the Non-Confidential Exhibits for service
upon each proposed respondent (Commission Rules 210.8(a)(l)(iii)and 21O.11(a));

3. Eleven (11) additional copies of the Confidential Exhibits on CD, one for each proposed
respondent (Commission Rules 210.8(a)(l)(iii)and 21O.11(a));

V 4. Three (3) additional copies of the Non-Confidential Verified Complaint for service upon
the Embassy of the People's Republic of China (Commission Rules 21O.8(a)(l)(iv)and
21O.11(a)(l)(ii)); and ' i

K&L GATES LLP

101 K STREET, N.W. WASHINGTON DC 20006
T +1 202 778 9000 F +1 202 778 9100 klgates.com



One (1) certified copy of the asserted United States Patent: U.S. Patent No. 8,325,838
(the ‘"838 patent”), identified as Exhibit 1 in the Complaint;

One (1) certified copy of the asserted United States Patent: U.S. Patent No. 8,279,809
(the “‘809 patent”), identified as Exhibit 2 in the Complaint;

One (1) certified copy of the assignment for the ‘838 patent, identified as Exhibit 3 in the
Complaint;

One (1) certified copy of the assignment for the ‘809 patent, identified as Exhibit 4 in the
Complaint; "

One (1) certified copy of the prosecution history of the ‘838 patent, identified as
Appendix A in the Complaint, and three (3) additional copies on separate CDs
(Commission Rules 210.12(c)(l));

One (1) certified copy of the prosecution history of the ‘B09patent, identified as
Appendix B in the Complaint, and three (3) additional copies on separate CDs
(Commission Rules 210.12(c)(l));

Four (4) copies of the cited references identified in the prosecution histories of the
asserted patents, identified as Appendices C through D in the Complaint, respectively
(Commission Rule 210.12(c)(2)).

A letter of certification pursuant to Commission Rules 201 .6(b) and 21O.8(d) requesting
confidential treatment of information appearing in Confidential Exhibits 15 and 38 to the
Verified Complaint.

Respectfully submitted,

/' // I .3ps W1. /¢--.4 M »_,, as
Eric Rusnak

Counsel for Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics Corporation
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VIA HAND DELIVERY

The Honorable Lisa R. Barton
Acting Secretary
U.S. International Trade Commission
500 E Street, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20436

Re: Certain Wi-Fi Enabled Electronic Devices and Components Thereof Such as Spare
Parts, Inv. No. 337-TA-_

Dear Secretary Barton:

In accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 201.8(9) and 210.5, Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics
Corporation (“Sharp”)request confidential treatment for the business information contained in
Confidential Exhibits 15 and 38 to the Verified Complaint.

The information for which confidential treatment is sought is proprietary commercial information
not otherwise publicly available. Specifically, Confidential Exhibit 15 contains information
regarding licensing of the asserted patents, and Confidential Exhibit38 contains proprietary
information regarding Complainant's domestic industry, including information relating to the
commercial operations and financial performance of Complainant.

The informationdescribed above qualifies as confidential business information pursuant to
Rule 201 .6(a) because:

1. lt is not publicly available;

2. Unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to the
competitive position of Sharp;

3. The disclosure of such information could impair the Commission's ability to obtain
information necessary to perform it statutory function
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Please contact me should you have any questions concerning this request or ifthis request is
not granted in full.

Respectfully submitted,/mwb
ric .Rusnak _ V,

Counsel for Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics Corporation
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN WI-FI ENABLED
ELECTRONIC DEVICES AND
COMPONENTS THEREOF

Inv. No. 337-TA

COMPLAINANTS’ STATEMENT ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST

Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 2l0.8(b), Complainants Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics

Corporation (collectively, “Sharp”) respectfully submit this statement on the public interest

regarding the remedial orders Sharp seeks against Proposed Respondents Hisense Co., Ltd.,

Hisense Electric, Co. Ltd., Hisense International (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd., Hisense USA

Corporation, Hisense Electronics Manufacturing Company of America Corporation, Hisense

USA Multimedia R&D Center, Inc., and Hisense Inc. (collectively “Hisense” or “Proposed

Respondents”). Sharp seeks a pennanent limited exclusion order excluding from entry into the

United States certain televisions that are Wi-Fi enabled (“Accused Products”) that infringe

United States Patent Nos. 8,325,838 (the “’838 patent”) 8,279,809 (the “’809 Patent”)

(collectively “the Asserted Patents”). Sharp also seeks permanent cease and desist orders,

pursuant to Section 337(t), directing each Proposed Respondent, or subsidiaries or agents

thereof, to cease and desist fiom importing, marketing, advertising, demonstrating, warehousing

inventory for distribution, offering for sale, selling, distributing, licensing, or using the Accused

Products in the United States.
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I. THE REQUESTED REMEDY WILL NOT HARM THE PUBLIC INTEREST

Sharp’s requested remedial orders, which would protect U.S. intellectual property rights,

serve the public interest. The Commission has long recognized a strong public interest in

enforcing and protecting intellectual property rights. See, e.g., Certain Baseband Processor

Chips & Chipsets, Transmitter, & Receiver (Radio) Chips, Power Control Chips, & Prod.

Containing Same, Including Cellular Tel. Handsets, USITC Inv. No. 337-TA-543, Comm’n Op.,

2011 WL 6121182, at *68 (Oct. 2011) (“we must take into account the strong public interest in

enforcing intellectual property rights”). In the few instances where the Commission found that

the public interest concerns outweighed the public’s interest in excluding the infringing goods,

there was an “inadequate supply within the United States—by both the patentee and domestic

licensees—[such] that an exclusion order would deprive the public of products necessary for

some important health or Welfareneed: energy efficient automobiles, basic scientific research, or

hospital equipment.” Spansion, Inc. v. Int ’l Trade Comm ’n, 629 F.3d 1331 (Fed. Cir. 2010).

Sharp’s requested remedial orders raise no such concerns at least because: (1) the accused

devices are luxury devices that are not necessary to some important health or welfare need; (2)

other third-parties already sell articles that directly compete with, and are substitutes for,

Proposed Respondents’ infringing products in the United States, (3) pursuant to a trademark

license agreement, Hisense has the right to manufacture, distribute and sell Sharp-branded

televisions in the United States that can replace the accused products; and (4) the production

capacity of third-parties could fill any void in the market. Accordingly, the strong public interest

in protecting Sharp’s intellectual property rights outweighs any potentially adverse impact on the

public.
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II. SPECIFIC PUBLIC INTEREST INQUIRIES

A. Use of the Accused Products in the United States

The accused devices at issue in this investigation are Wi-Fi enabled televisions and

components thereof. These devices are not necessary for any health or welfare need. Instead,

these products are luxury items for home entertaimnent and comfort purposes. In particular, the

accused Wi-Fi enabled televisions allow users to connect to the internet in order to stream digital

media, audio and videos. ~

B. The Requested Remedial Orders Pose No Public Health, Competition or Welfare
Concerns

There are no health, safety, or welfare concerns implicated by this investigation. Any

remedial orders granted during this investigation with respect to the Accused Products will not

harm public health, safety, or welfare. Traditionally, the Commission’s public health, safety, or

welfare concern has been limited to medical devices or pharmaceutical drugs. See, e1"g.,Certain

Toothbrushes & the Packaging Thereof, Comm’n Opinion on Remedy, the Pub. Interest, &

Bonding, USITC lnv. N0. 337-TA-391, C0mm’n Op., 1997 WL 696291, at *2 (Oct. 15, 1997).

Wi-Fi enabled televisions are neither medical devices nor phannaceutical drugs or vaccines, but

rather are consumer electronics devices with special options to connect to the internet. Rather

than public health‘ or Welfare advantages, these products provide, as discussed above, in-home

entertainment and/or convenience.

C. Like Articles are Available to Satisfy Demand for Excluded Accused Products

There are many like or directly competitive articles that could take the place of Proposed

Respondents’ infringing devices after the issuance of exclusion orders. Many third parties in the

smart television industry can provide competitive articles to replace the Accused Products if they

were excluded. First, pursuant to a trademark license agreement, Hisense has the right to
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manufacture, distribute and sell Sharp-branded televisions in the United States that can replace

the accused products. Hisense does not have the right, however, to manufacture, distribute and

sell its accused products. Additionally, other third parties, including LG and Samsung

manufacture directly competitive smart televisions. These third parties, among others, offer

substantially equivalent overall functionality at a similar price point to the consumer as the

Accused Products.

D. There is Sufficient Capacity to Replace Excluded Accused Products _

The presence of an adequate supply of substitute products is sufficient to override any

public interest concerns. See Certain Lens-Fitted Film Packages, USITC Inv. No. 337-TA-406,

Cornn1’n Opinion, 1999 WL 436531, at *l3 (June 28, 1999). Sharp, as well as third parties such

as LG and Samsung, have substantial manufacturing, production, and shipping capabilities that

are more than enough to replace any excluded articles in a commercially reasonable amount of

time. Hisense is already manufacturing, distributing, and selling Sharp-branded televisions

pursuant to its trademark license agreement with Sharp. And as further noted above, third parties

in the smart television industry can provide additional, directly competitive articles at a similar

price point that could replace the Accused Products if they were excluded.

E. The Remedy Has no Relevant Public—InterestImpact on U.S. Consumers

The technology at issue in this investigation involves Wi-Fi enabled televisions. It is

unlikely that an exclusion order would substantially impact customers. There would be no

shortage of competing goods in light of the available substitute products from third parties,

which could able replace the volume of excluded articles. Even if the exclusion order were to

result in a slight increase in the price of certain products, which appears unlikely, a price increase

alone is insufficient to warrant preclusion of a remedial order. Certain Liens-Fitted Film
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Packages, USITC Inv. N0. 337-TA’-406, Comm’n Opinion, 1999 WL 436531, at *l3 (June 28,

1999)‘(finding that some price increase does not “justify a determination that the public interest

in protecting intellectual property rights is in any way outweighed”). Thus, any impact to the

public interest by the exclusion of Proposed Respondents’ infringing products will be de

minimus or non-existent. '

F. Other Public Interest Considerations

The ’838 and ’809 patents are directed at various aspects and features of wireless

communication described at least in part in the IEEE 802.1ln standard, including the ability to

allocate unused subcarriers in a variable and/or predetermined fashion, thereby increasing

wireless communication efficiency. Sharp did not participate in the IEEE’s 802.lln standard

setting process, and Sharp did not submit a letter of assurance to the IEEE regarding licensing

terms for the ’838 or ’809 patents. Accordingly, the ’838 and ’809 patents are not subject to a

FRAND/RAND licensing obligation.

III. CONCLUSION

_ If the Commission grants the requested remedial orders, the public interest will be served.

The accused devices are not necessary to any health or Welfare need, and an adequate supply of

substitute devices will be available through Sharp and third parties. As such, the strong public

interest in protecting Sharp’s valid intellectual property rights outweighs any potential adverse

impact on the public. For the foregoing reasons, there are no public interest concerns that would

preclude the Commission from issuing the remedial orders requested by the Complainants.
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Dated:August29,2017 - /_ 0,4,/ /
Harold H. Davis, Jr.
K&L‘Gates LLP
Four Embarcadero Center
Suite 1200
San Francisco, California 94111
Tel: 415-882-8200
Fax: 415-882-8220 t

Haro1d.Davis @l<lgates.c0ni

Eric C. Rusnak
K&L Gates LLP
1601 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 2006
Tel: 202-778-9000
Fax: 202-778-9100
Eric.Rusnak@klgates.c0m

Counselfor Complainants Sharp
Corporation and Sharp Electronics
Corporation
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I. INTRODUCTION

l.l.' Complainants Sharp Corporation and Sharp Electronics Corporation (collectively,

“Sharp” or “Complainants”) request that the United States International Trade Commission

commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended 19

U.S.C. § 1337 (“Scction 337”), to remedy the unlawful importation into the United States, sale

for importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation by

the owner, importer, or consignee (or agents thereof), of certain Wi-Fi enabled devices and

components thereof that infringe valid and enforceable United States patents owned by Sharp.

1.2. The Proposed Respondents are Hisense Co., Ltd., Hisense International-(Hong

Kong) Co. Ltd., Hisense Electric, Co. Ltd., Hisense USA Corporation, Hisense Electronics

Manufacturing Company of America Corporation, Hisense USA Multimedia R&D Center, Inc.,

and Hisense Inc. (“Proposed Respondents”). Upon information and belief, Proposed

Respondents have engaged in unfair acts in violation of Section 337 through and in connection

with the unlicensed importation into the United States, sale for importation into the United States,

and/or sale within the United States after importation of products that infringe one or more

claims of U.S. Patent No. 8,325,838 (the “’838 patent”) and one or more claims of U.S. Patent

No. 8,279,809 (the ‘"809 patent”) (collectively, “the Asserted Patents”).

1.3. Complainants assert that Proposed Respondents directly infringe, contributorily

infringe, and/or induce the infringement of at least the following claims (independent claims in

bold; collectively, “the asserted claims”):

V,I Asserted Patent Asserted Claims
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10,11, 12, 13, 14,

8,325,838
15,16,l7,18

1
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8,279,809 l 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 2, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16 l

1.4. Certified copies of the Asserted Patents accompany this Complaint as Exhibits 1

2. Sharp Corp. owns by assigmnent the entire right, title, and interest in and to these patents. A

certified copy of the recorded assignments accompanies this Complaint as Exhibits 3-4.

1.5. As required by 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(2) and defined by 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(3), a

domestic industry in the United States eXists_relating to articles covered by the Asserted Patents.

1.6. Complainants seek a permanent limited exclusion order, pursuant to Section

33'7(d), excluding from entry into the United States all of the Proposed Respondents’ Accused

Products texamples of which are described infia in Section IV) that infringe one or more claims

of the Asseited Patents. Complainants also seek permanent cease and desist orders, pursuant to

Section 337(f), directing each Proposed Respondent to cease and desist from activities including,

but not limited to, importing, marketing, advertising, demonstrating, warehousing inventory for

distribution, offering for sale, selling, distributing, servicing, repairing, maintaining,

programming, updating, or using such Accused Products in the United States. Complainants also

seek the imposition of a bond on any imports during the Presidential review period.

II. COMPLAINANTS

2.1 Sharp Corporation (“Sharp Corp.”) is a corporation organized under the laws of

Japan, with its principal place of business at 1 Takumi-cho, Sakai-ku, Sakai City, Osaka 590

8522, Japan Osaka, Japan.

2.2 Sharp Electronics Corporation (“Sharp USA”) is a corporation organized under

the laws of the State of New York, with its principal place of business in Montvale, New Jersey.

Sharp USA is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sharp Corp.

2
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2.3 Sharp Corp. was established in 1912, and has been providing quality electronic

products for nearly 100 years. In addition to televisions, Sharp has historically made and sold a

wide range of consumer and business products, including at various times, appliances, audio and

video equipment, calculators, smartphones, professional and commercial displays, interactive

display systems, and multi-function printers (MFPs). In addition, Sharp sells a host of other

consumer electronics in the United States and abroad including televisions, smart phones, home

appliances, robots, and other products. The Sharp brand carries with it a longstanding reputable

history, and is synonymous with the provision of quality products.

2.4 Sharp and its subsidiaries have facilities worldwide, including offices in the

United States, Japan, Canada, China, Great Britain, Korea and Taiwan. Sharp engages in

research, manufacturing and marketing of advanced electronic and electrical products, including

information and communications equipment and systems, electronic components, and household

appliances.

2.5 Sharp registered its first trademark in the US on March 7, 1961, which it used in

connection with an electric shaver, Registration No. 0712312. Sharp first registered its Class 9 

trademark for “television receivers, etc.” on June 13, 1978 (Registration No. 1093113). Since

that time, Sharp has worked hard to create its reputation for producing quality products in order

to build brand equity and goodwill.

2.6 Sharp USA was founded in 1962. For over 50 years, Sharp has operated in the

United States and Worked to develop, service, and support Sharp products in the United States.

2.7 Sharp is an industry ‘leaderand has made substantial investments in Wi-Fi enabled

electronic devices, including professional and commercial displays, interactive display systems,

and multi-ftuiction printers (MFPs).
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2.8 Since 2015, Sharp has sold more than 200,000 Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices

in the United States. Sharp has extensive involvement in the U.S. market with its innovative Wi

Fi enabled electronic devices. As explained herein, Sharp employs hundreds of persons in the

United States who are dedicated to the development, quality control, marketing, sales, and

customer care of its Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices and related accessories for U.S. customers.

III. PROPOSED. RESPONDENTS —HISENSE AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

3.1 On information and belief, Hisense Co., Ltd. (“Hisense China”) is a Chinese

corporation, having a principal place of business at Hisense Tower, 17 Donghaixi Road, Qingdao,

China 266071.

3.2 Hisense China has asserted that it is an “agency or instnlmentality” of the

Qingdao Municipal government, a political subdivision of China. Specifically, Hisense China

has claimed that it is a separate limited liability company, wholly-owned by a political

subdivision of the Chinese government, created pursuant to Chinese law, and is neither a citizen

of the United States nor any third country.

3.3 On information and belief, Hisense China conducts business in the United States

directly and through subsidiaries and utilizes the website http://global.hisense.con1/ and '

htlp://www.hisense-usa.com.

3.4 According to its website (http://www.hisensc-usa.com/), Hisense or others on its

behalf, offers for sale several Wi-Fi enabled devices, including smart televisions. See Exhibit 5.

For example, Hisense branded televisions that are Wi-Fi enabled include at least Model Nos.

50H8C, sonsc, 501161),and 43H7C.'

‘The identification of specific product models herein is not intended to limit the scope of the
investigation. Discovery may reveal that additional products infringe the Asserted Patents. Any
remedy should extend to all infringing products.
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3.5 On infonnation and belief, Hisense Electric, Co. Ltd. (“Hisense Electric”) is a

corporation incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with a principal place

of business at No. 218 Qianwangang road, QingDao Economic & Technological Zone, QingDao,

China 266555. On information and belief, Hisense Electric conducts business in the United

States either directly or through subsidiaries and is involved in the importation of products

subject to this Complaint.

3.6 On information and belief, Hisense (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (“Hisense Hong Kong”)

is a subsidiary of Hisense China, and is a company incorporated under the laws of the People’s

Republic of China with a principal place of business at Room 3104-06, Singga Commercial

Centre, N0. 148 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, China. On information and belief, Hisense

Hong Kong conducts business in the United States either directly or through subsidiaries and is

involved in the importation of products subject to this Complaint.

3.7 On information and belief, Hisense USA Corporation (“Hisense USA”) is a

corporation incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, with a principal

place of business at 7310 McGinnis Ferry Road, Suwanee, GA 30024.

3.8 On information and belief, Hisense USA is one of Hisense China’s U.S.-based

entities for importation, sales, distribution, and sales after importation for products subject to this

investigation.

p 3.9 On information and belief, Hisense Electronics Manufacturing Company of

America Corporation (“Hisense Mfg”) is a corporation incorporated and existing under the laws

of the State ofGeorgia with a principal place of business at 7310 McGinnis Feny Road,

Suwanee, GA 30024.
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3.10 On information and belief, Hisense Mfg. is one of Hisense China’s U.S.-based

entities for importation, sales, distribution, and sales after importation for products subject to this

investigation.

1 3.11 On information and belief, Hisense USA Multimedia R&D Center, Inc. (“Hisense

USA R&D”) is a corporation incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia

with a principal place of business at 7310 McGinnis Ferry Road, Suwanee, GA 30024. Upon

information and belief, Hisense USA R&D tests and otherwise uses products subject to this

investigation.

3.12 On information and belief, Hisense Inc. is a corporation incorporated and existing

under the laws of the State of California with a principal place of business at Hisense Inc., 16541

Gothard St., Suite 108, Huntington Beach, CA 92647. Upon information and belief, Hisense Inc

provides drivers and other firmware and software necessary to operate products subject to this

investigation.

3.13 Collectively, Complainants refer to all of the above identified Hisense entities as

“Hisense.”

IV. THE TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS AT ISSUE

l 4.1 The technologies at issue relate generally to various aspects of wireless

communication by consumer electronic devices such as televisions. As explained herein, the

Asserted Patents are directed to various aspects and features of wireless communication

described at least in part on the IEEE 802.11n amendment, including the ability to allocate

unused subcarriers in a variable and/or predetermined fashion, thereby increasing wireless

communication efficiency. The Asserted Patents are not subject to a FRAND/RAND obligation,

and Sharp did not disclose and was not required to disclose the patents as part of the 802.1 ln

amendment process.
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4.2 Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.l2(a)(l2), the Accused Products are certain Wi-Fi

enabled electronic devices and components thereof, including but not limited to high definition

televisions with Wi-Fi capability, that, without pennission, implement Sharp’s patented

technologies involving Wi-Fi communications as described and claimed in the Asserted Patents.

4.3 Wi-Fi or WiFi is a technology for wireless local area networking with devices

based on the IEEE 802.11 standards. Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices are capable of

communicating wirelessly with other Wi-Fi enabled devices including Wi-Fi routers or gateways

that allow for internet connectivity. One of the primary features of a Wi-Fi enabled electronic

device is that the device can wirelessly transmit and receive infonnation. In this regard, some

Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices are capable of being sensed or controlled remotely including

via the internet, thereby allowing in some instances for home automation.

4.4 Many of today’s electronic devices are characterized by being “smart” or “Wi-Fi”

enabled, which allows them to wirelessly communicate and to wirelessly connect to the internet.

Examples of Hisense Accused Products include, but are not limited to, the 50H8C, 50H5C,

50H6D, and 43H7C models.

4.5 On information and belief, the Accused Products are sold for importation into the

United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by or on behalf of the Proposed Respondents. Discovery may disclose importation

of additional infringing articles.

V. THE ASSERTED PATENTS

A. U.S. Patent N0. 8,325,838

1. Identification of the Patent and Ownership by Sharp

5.1 U.S. Patent No. 8,325,838 (the “’838 patent”) is entitled “Communication Method

and Radio Transmitter” and was duly and legally issued on December 4, 2012. See Exhibit 1.
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The ’838 patent issued from U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 13/271,936, filed October 12,

2011. The inventor of the ’838 patent is Yasuhiro Hamaguchi. Id.

5.2 The ’838 patent has four independent claims and 14 dependent claims. Id.

The ’838 patent is valid, enforceable, and currently in full force and effect.

5.3 Sharp Corp. is the owner, by valid assignment, of the entire right, title and interest

in and to the ’838 patent. Prior to issuance, the ’838 patent inventor assigned all right, title and

interest in U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 13/271,936 to Sharp. This assignment is recorded

at the United States Patent and Trademark Office at Reel/Frame 029249/0048. See Exhibit 3.

5.4 This Complaint is accompanied by Appendices A and C containing: A) a certified

copy and three additional copies of the prosecution history of the ’838 patent; and B) four copies

of cited references mentioned in that prosecution history.

2. Non-Technical Description of the Patented Inventionz

5.5 The ’838 patent relates to a wireless communication system on a frequency band

having a plurality of frequency channels with a terminal capable of receiving or transmitting only

part of the plurality of the frequency channels. The ’838 patent resolves the issue that terminals

with different capabilities coexist in a system. The IEEE 802.1ln amendment introduced new

high throughput (HT) access point and non-access point stations capable of receiving or

transmitting by one or two frequency channels at the same time, although legacy non-HT 802.11

access point and non-access point stations could only use one frequency channel at the same time

and some 802.11n new stations also could use one frequency channel only at the same time. The

2The non-technical"descriptions of the Asserted Patents herein are presented to give a general
background of the inventions. Such statements are not intended to be used, nor should be used,
for purposes of patent claim interpretation. Complainants present these statements subject to, and
without waiver of, its right to argue that claim terms should be construed in a particular way, as
contemplated by claim interpretation jurisprudence and the relevant evidence.
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coexistence of such stations is resolved and facilitated by the ’838 patent. The inventions of

the ’838 patent enable the new HT stations to communicate with legacy stations and still be able

to achieve higher throughput by using additional channels (and/or sub-carriers) when

communicating with new HT devices. Therefore, by facilitating interoperability between legacy

devices and new HT devices, the invention reduces costs to replace all devices when the new

802.1ln amendment has been widely adopted. Further, the invention enables some new HT

stations to use multiple frequency channels for maximum throughput while allowing some new

HT stations to use fewer subcarriers and thereby minimize energy usage. Therefore, by allowing

new HT devices to use varying number of frequency channels and/or sub-carriers, different

classes of HT devices are enabled such as lower power HT devices and higher throughput HT

devices. Thus, the ’838 patent inventions provide a significant advantages to Wi-Fi enabled

products using the 802.1ln amendment against other potential new wireless LAN standards.

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’838Patent

5.6 The following foreign patent(s) and/or patent application(s) are counterparts to

the ’838 patent:

Patent / Application N0. i Status
JP5063825 Issued August 17, 2012

CN2012lO35933 1.5 Issued August 3, 2016

DE202005022046.9 ‘ Expired

No other foreign patents or patent applications corresponding to the ’838 patent have been filed,

abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected

9
VERIFIED COMPLAINT



4. Licenses

5.7 As required under Commission Rule 210. l2(a)(9)(iii), a list of licensed entities is

attached to this Complaint as Confidential Exhibit l5. There are no other current licenses to

the ’838 patent. 

5.8 Pursuant to a trademark license agreement, Hisense has the right to manufacture,

distribute and sell Sharp-branded televisions in the United States. These Sharp-branded products

are not among the accused products in this Complaint. Hisense does not have a license to

the ’838 patent, and it does not have the right to make, sell, or offer for sale the non-Sharp

branded products that practice the claims of the ’838 patent that are the subject of this Complaint

B. U.S. Patent N0. 8,279,809

1. Identification of the Patent and Ownership by Sharp

5.9 U.S. Patent No. 8,279,809 (the ‘"809 patent”) is entitled “Transmission Power

Control for Orthogonal Frequency Division Multiplexing (OFDM) Signals” and was duly and

legally issued on October 2, 2012. See Exhibit 2. The ’809 patent issued from U.S. Patent

Application Serial No. 13/272,048, filed October 12, 2011. The inventors of the ’809 patent are

Hiroki Kashiwagi and Yasuhiro I-Iamaguchi. Id.

5.10 The ’809 patent has three independent claims and 13 dependent claims. Id.

The ’809 patent is valid, enforceable, and currently in full force and effect.

5.11 Sharp Corp. is the owner, by valid assignment, of the entire right, title and interest

in and to the ’809 patent. Prior to issuance, the ’809 patent inventors assigned all right, title and

interest in U.S. Patent Application Serial No. l3/272,048 to Sharp. This assignment is recorded

at the United States Patent and Trademark Office at Reel/Frame 029249/0566. See Exhibit 4.
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5.12 This Complaint is accompanied by Appendices B and D containing: A) a certified

copy and three additional copies of the prosecution history of the ’809 patent; and B) four copies

of cited references mentioned in that prosecution history.

2. Non-Technical Description of the Patented Invention V

5.13 The ’809 patent relates to a wireless communication system on a frequency band

with a terminal capable of receiving or transmitting only part of the frequency band. The ’809

patent resolves the issue that tenninals with different capabilities coexist in a system. The IEEE

802.1ln amendment introduced new high throughput (HT) access point and non-access point

stations capable of receiving or transmitting by a broader part of a 2Ol\/{Hzfrequency band than

legacy non-HT 802.11 access point and non-access point stations could only use a narrower part

of the 2OMHzfrequency band. And some 802.1ln new stations could use a 4OMHzfrequency

band and thus such 802.1ln new stations could use a broader part of the 40MHz band than

legacy or other 802.11n new stations could only use a palt of a 20MHz band. The coexistence of

such stations is resolved and facilitated by the ’-809 patent. The inventions of the ’-809 patent

enable the new HT stations to communicate with legacy stations and still be able to achieve

higher throughput by using additional sub-carriers when communicating with new HT devices.

Therefore, by facilitating interoperability between legacy devices and new HT devices, the

invention reduces costsito replace all devices when the new 802.1 ln amendment has been widely

adopted. Further, the invention enables some new HT stations to use a 4OMHz frequency band

comprising multiple frequency chamiels for maximum throughput while allowing some new HT

stations to use fewer subcarriers and thereby minimize energy usage. Therefore, by allowing

new HT devices to use varying number of sub-carriers, different classes of HT devices are

enabled such as lower power HT devices and higher throughput HT devices. Thus, the ’809
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patent inventions provide a significant advantages to Wi-Fi enabled products using,the 802.11n

amendment against other potential. new wireless LAN standards.

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’809Patent

5.14 The following foreign patent(s) and/or patent application(s) are counterparts to

the ’809 patent:

Patent / Application No. i Status

EPl2l90896.6 1Pending
CN201110303322.X Issued June 17, 2015

JP4997342 Issued May 18, 2012

No other foreign patents or patent applications corresponding to the ’809 patent have been filed,

abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected

4. Licenses

5.15 As required under Commission Rule 2l0.12(a)(9)(iii), a list of licensed entities is

attached to this Complaint as Confidential Exhibit 15. There are no other current licenses to

the ’809 patent.

5.16 Pursuant to a trademark license agreement, Hisense has the right to manufacture,

distribute and sell Sharp-branded televisions in the United States. These Sharp-branded products

are not among the accused products in this complaint. Hisense does not have a license to

the ’809 patent, and it docs not have the right to make, sell, or offer for sale the non-Sharp

branded products that practice the claims of the ’809 patent that are the subject of this Complaint

VI. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE

p 6.1 On information and belief, Proposed Respondents, or others on their behalf,

manufacture the Accused Products in China, Mexico, or another country other than the United
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States and then import them into the United States, sell them for importation into the United

States, and/or sell them after importation into the United States.

6.2 On June l 1, 2017, a Hisense 50 inch television, Model Number 5OH8C, an

Accused Product, was purchased in the United States at Best Buy in Union City, California. See

Exhibit 16. The purchased product specifies that the television was “Made in China.” See

Exhibit 10.

6.3 On June 12, 2017, a Hisense 50 inch LED television, Model Number SOHSC,an

Accused Product, was purchased in the UnitedA_Stateson the internet at Walmartcom. See

Exhibit 17. The purchased product specifics that the television was “Assembled in Mexico.” '

See Exhibit 11.

6.4 On June l2, 2017, a Hisense 50 inch LED television, Model Number 50H6D, an

Accused Product, was purchased in the United States on the intemet at Walmart.c0m. See

Exhibit 18. The purchased product specifies that the television was “Assembled in Mexico.”

See Exhibit 12.

6.5 On June ll, 2017, a Hisense 43 inch television, Model Number 43H7C, an

Accused Product, was purchased in the United States at Best Buy in Union City, California. See

Exhibit 19. The purchased product specifies that the television was “Assembled in Mexico.”

See Exhibit 13.

6.6 _ As discussed in Section III.I, supra, on information and belief, the Hisense

entities are involved with the manufacture, importation, sale for importation, distribution, testing,

use, and/or sale after importation of the Accused Products. See Exhibit 7 (Panjiva.com

Importation Records); Exhibits 8-9 (Websites showing offer for sales of accused products)

Exhibit 14 (Public FCC Records).
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6.7 Discovery is expected to reveal additional specific acts of Proposed Respondents’

importation, sale for importation, and/or sale after importation of the Accused Products.

VII. UNFAIR ACTS OF PROPOSED RESPONDENTS

A. Infringement of the Asserted Patents

7.1 On information and belief, the Proposed Respondents have engaged in unfair

trade practices, including the sale for importation, importation, and sale after importation into the

United States of certain Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices and components thereof that infringe

the asserted apparatus and method claims of the Asserted Patents. Upon information and belief,

the Accused Products directly infringe, contributorily infringe, and/or induce the infringement of

at least the asserted claims as specifically set forth in the table below.3 On information and belief,

the Proposed Respondents manufacture, assemble, package and test, and/or purchase the

Accused Products outside the United States, specifically, at least in Mexico, and/or the People’s

Republic of China; the Proposed Respondents then sell for importation, import into the United

States, and/or sell within the United States after importation, the Accused Products.

7.2 The Asserted Patents and corresponding asserted claims are listed below

(independent claims in bold):

U.S. Patent No. ‘ Infringed Claims
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,10, ll, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17,

8,325,838
18 '

8,279,809 u 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9,11, 12, 13, l4, l6

3Discovery may reveal that Proposed Respondents infringe additional claims of the Asserted
Patents. Complainants reserve all rights to supplement its allegations with respect to any
upcoming or newly discovered products.
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7.3 On information and belief, the Proposed Respondents directly infringe the

asserted claims at least through their sale for importation, importation, and sale after importation

into the United States of the Accused Products, and indirectly infringe any asserted claims

directed to methods of operating the Accused Products at least byfcontributing to and/or inducing

others to practice the claimed methods in the United States. Hisense imports and provides Wi-Fi

modules which, in combination with electronic devices, can be used to infringe the Asserted

Patents.

7.4 The Proposed Respondents have induced, and continue to induce, direct

infringement of the Asserted Patents at least by their customers and/or end users with the specific

intent that such customers’ and/or end users’ acts infringe the Asserted Patents. On infomiation

and belief, the Proposed Respondents actively induce others to infringe at least the asserted

method claims through their sale of the Accused Products to customers in the United States.

Upon information and belief, the Proposed Respondents create and distribute promotional and

product literature for the Accused Products that is designed to instruct, encourage, enable, and

facilitate the use of the Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Patents.

See, e.g., Exhibits 20-37 (user manual, claim charts).

7.5 The Proposed Respondents induce such infringing acts and know or should have

known that their actions would induce direct infringement of the Asserted Patents. The Proposed

Respondents had actual notice of the Asserted Patents at least upon the filing or service of this

Complaint.4 The Proposed Respondents’ knowledge of their infringement of the Asserted

Patents, and their continued sale, offer for sale, importation, and/or sale for importation of the

4Concurrently with the filing of this Complaint, non-confidential copies of the same will be
provided by Complainants to each Proposed Respondent at the addresses herein identified on the
front cover.
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Accused Products constitutes infringement as well as active inducement of others to infringe the

Asserted Patents. P

7.6 To the extent any Proposed Respondents contend that they do not sell for

importation, import, or sell in the United States after importation products that include all of the

limitations of the asserted apparatus claims, such Proposed Respondents contributorily infringe

certain of the asserted claims through their sale and offers to sell within the United States and/or

importation into the United States of components of the Accused Products, constituting a

material part of the asserted claims, knowing the same to be especially made or especially

adapted for use in an infringement of the Asserted Patents, and not a staple article or commodity

of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Due to the specific designs of the

Accused Products, components thereof do not have any substantial non-infringing uses.

B. Application of Asserted Independent Claims

7.7 The Accused Products that are sold for importation, imported, and/or sold after

importation into the United States by the Proposed Respondents infringe, individually as an

apparatus and/or when used to practice a method, at least the asserted claims set forth in the table

above, either literally —_directly or indirectly —or under the doctrine of equivalents. For example,

attached to this Complaint are charts that apply to the Hisense Model Numbers 5OH6D, SOHSC,

SOHSC,and 43H7C asserted independent claims 1, 7, 12, and 15 of the ’838 patent, and asserted

claims 1, 6, and 11 of the ’809 patent. See Exhibits 24-31. Discovery may reveal additional

Hisense infringing Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices and/or components thereof.

VIII. CLASSIFICATION UNDER THE HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE

8.1 The Accused Products are believed to fall within at least the following

classification of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States: [8517.69.00.00]

(“Telephone sets, including telephones for cellular networks or for other wireless networks; other
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apparatus for the transmission or reception of voice, images or other data, including apparatus for

communication in a wired or wireless network (such as a local or wide area network), other than

transmission or reception apparatus of heading 8443, 8525, 8527 or 8528; parts thereof; other”).

Components of the Accused Products may be classified under at least Harmonized Tariff

Schedule item number [8517.70.00] (“[. . .]; parts thereof: Parts”). These classifications are

intended for illustration only and are not intended to be restrictive of the Accused Products.

IX. Domestic Industry

9.1 As required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3), a domestic

industry exists in the United States in connection with the articles protected by the ’838 and ’809

patents. Sharp offers several products that practice one or more of the asserted patent claims and

has spent millions of dollars in the United States to create, test and support these products for use

by U.S. consumers. Sharp has earned hundreds of millions of dollars of revenue on these

domestic industry products.

A. Technical Prong

9.2 Claim charts demonstrating how exemplary Sharp professional and commercial

displays, interactive display systems, and multi-function printers, practice at least one claim of

each of the ’838 and ’809 patents are attached as Exhibits 32 through Exhibit 37. The claim

charts rely on Sharp’s LC-60LE661U as exemplary of its LC-series products, Sharp’s PN-ZW01

DUNT-22l3MPZZ as exemplary of its PN-series products, and Sharp’s MX 3640 as exemplary

of its MX series products. Sharp’s Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices are therefore protected by

the ‘838 and ’809 patents, and a technical domestic industry for those articles exists.

9.3 . Sharp’s customers and/or end users also practice at least one claim of each of

the ’838 and ’809 patents in a manner known and expected by Sharp through their use of the

Sharp LC-series products, Sharp’s PN-series products, and Sharp’s MX series products. Sharp
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actively encourages its customers and/or end users to practice at least one claim of each of

the ’838 and ’809 patents, for example, by providing technical guides, product data sheets,

demonstrations, specifications, installation guides, and other forms of support.

B. Economic Prong

9.4 Sharp has made, and continues to make, substantial investments in the United

States to create and support the products that practice the Asserted Patents.

9.5 A domestic industry, under subparts (A), (B), and/or (C) of Section 337(a)(3),

exists by virtue of Sharp’s significant United States investment in plant and equipment,

significant employment of U.S. labor and capital, and/or substantial investment in U.S.

exploitation of the Assetted Patents, including through engineering, research and development.

Sharp’s Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices are protected by at least the ’838 and ’809 patents.

Sharp’s domestic activities and investments related to the articles protected by the Asserted

Patents are described in the Confidential Declaration of Gregory Kipp, Senior Manager —BU

Controller of Sharp Electronics Coiporation. See generally Confidential Exhibit 38. In

particular, certain of Sharp’s Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices (collectively, the “domestic

industry products”) practice one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. In particular, Sharp’s

LC-series, PN-series, and MX —seriesdevices practice-claims of the ’838 and ’809 patents. The

domestic industry products account for a significant portion of Sharp’s overall revenues and unit

output. See id.

9.6 Sharp employs over 1,400 employees in the United States in its U.S. facilities

located in Montvale, New Jersey and Memphis, Tennessee, as well as at Sharp Business Systems

(“SBS”) locations throughout the United States. Sharp’s employees are involved in product

development, marketing, sales, customer support, and after-sales services of its innovative line of
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Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices in its U.S. facilities. Sharp’s work on the domestic industry

products occurs in the United States at these facilities.

9.7 Sharp has made and continues to make significant investment in plant and

cquipment in the United States with respect to articles protected by the Asserted Patents. Sharp

has made and continues to make substantial investments in its Montvale, New Jersey and

Memphis, Termessee facilities, as well as those SBS locations throughout the United States.

Sharp invests significantly in the physical plant and the equipment located in these U.S. facilities

dedicated to product development, marketing, sales, servicing and supporting articles protected

by the Asserted Patents. In its Montvale, New Jersey and Memphis, Tennessee locations, alone,

Sharp uses over 600,000 square feet of space for the domestic industry products.

9.8 Sharp also has made and continues to make significant investments in labor and

capital with respect to articles that practice one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. As noted

surpa, Sharp employs approximately 1,400 employees in over 30 United States facilities who

devote substantial person-hours toward product development, marketing, sales, servicing and

support of products protected by the Asserted Patents. Further details of Sharp’s employment of

labor or capital are provided in Exhibit 38.

9.9 Sharp has made and continues to make significant investment in the exploitation

of the Asserted Patents. Sharp has invested and continues to invest in the sen/ice and support of

the patented features of the articles covered by the Asserted Patents through its investments in

the technical work performed at its U.S. facilities.

X. RELATED LITIGATION

10.1 At this time, Complainant has not filed a companion district court case

corresponding to the allegations made herein.
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10.2 Complainant Sharp Corp. and some of the Proposed Respondents are involved in

other unrelated litigation and actions against each other. For example, Complainant Sharp Corp.

and Hisense International (Hong Kong) America Investment Co., Ltd. are involved in an

arbitration proceeding under the arbitration rules of the Singapore International Arbitration

Centre. Complainant Sharp Corp. has also filed suit against Respondents Hisense USA, Hisense

Electric, Hisense USA R&D, and Hisense Hong Kong based upon Califomia state causes of

action. This action was originally filed in San Francisco Superior Court, but has been removed

to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. A motion to remand is

pending. Further, Complainant Sharp Corp. has filed a patent infringement suit in the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York against Respondents Hisense Electric,

Hisense USA and Hisense Mfg. for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 9,148,874 and 9,258,074.

XI. REQUESTED EXCLUSION ORDERS

A. Limited Exclusion Order

11.1 Pursuant to Section 337(d), Complainant respectfully requests that a limited

exclusion order be entered against the infringing products of each named Proposed Respondent

and its subsidiaries and affiliates in order to remedy the Proposed Respondents’ violation of

Section 337 and to prevent such future violations by Proposed Respondents.

B. Cease and Desist Orders

11.2 Cease and desist orders against all named Proposed Respondents are appropriate

under Section 337(1),which provides that the Commission may issue a cease and desist order

against any person violating Section 337 in addition to exclusion orders issued under Section

337(d). Accordingly, cease and desist orders directing Proposed Respondents to cease and desist

from the importation, marketing, advertising, distribution, and sale of the infringing Wi-Fi
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/

enabled electronic devices and components thereof are appropriate to remedy, and prevent, the

violation of Complainants’ patent rights.

XII. REQUESTED RELIEF

12.1 WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Complainants request that the United

States International Trade Commission:

a. Institute an immediate investigation, pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act

of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(l)(B)(i) and (b)(l), with respect to

violation of Section 337 by Proposed Respondents based upon their sale for

importation, importation, and/or sale after importation into the United States

of certain Wi-Fi enabled electronic devices and components thereof that

infringe one or more of the asserted claims of Complainant's United States

Patent No. 8,325,838 and United States Patent No. 8,279,809;

b. Schedule and conduct a hearing on the Proposed Respondents’ unlawful acts

and, following the hearing, determine that there has been a violation of

Section 337;

c. Issue a permanent limited exclusion order specifically directed to each named

Proposed Respondent and each of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates,

barring from entry into the United States all Accused Products that infringe

one or more of the asserted claims of Complainants’ United States Patent No.

8,325,838 and United States Patent No. 8,279,809;

d. Issue a permanent cease and desist order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § l337(f),

directing Proposed Respondents to cease and desist from selling for

importation into the United States, importing, selling after importation into the

United States, offering for sale, marketing, advertising, demonstrating,
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sampling, warehousing inventory for distribution, selling, distributing,

licensing, testing, providing technical support, use, or other related

commercial activity involving imported Accused Products that infringe one or

more of the asserted claims of Complainants’ United States Patent N0.

8,325,838 and United States Patent N0. 8,279,809;

Impose a bond, pursuant to Section 337(j) of the Tariff Act of 1930, as

amended, upon the Proposed Respondents during the Presidential review

period; and

Grant such other and further relief as the Commission deemsjust and proper

based on the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of the

Commission.
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